
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

Board of Directors

Meeting of the Governance Committee

March 20, 2020

9:00 a.m.

Meeting Location: 125 O Street, SE, Washington, D.C.
2nd Floor-Board Room

AGENDA

1. Call to Order ......................................................................... Ellen Boardman, Chairperson

2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report..........Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan ...................................Korey Gray
Compliance Officer

4. Amendment to the By-laws

5. Executive Session *

6. Adjournment

* The DC Water Board of Directors may go into executive session at this meeting pursuant to 
the District of Columbia Open Meetings Act of 2010, if such action is approved by a majority 
vote of the Board members who constitute a quorum to discuss: matters prohibited from public 
disclosure pursuant to a court order or law under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(1); contract 
negotiations under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(2); legal, confidential or privileged matters 
under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(4)(A); collective bargaining negotiations under D.C. Official 
Code § 2-575(b)(5); facility security under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(8); disciplinary matters 
under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(9); personnel matters under D.C. Official Code § 2-
575(b)(10); proprietary matters under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(11); train and develop 
members of a public body and staff under D.C. Official Codes § 2-575(b)(12); decision in an 
adjudication action under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(13); civil or criminal matters where 
disclosure to the public may harm the investigation under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(14), and 
other matters provided in the Act.

Governance Committee - Call to Order - Ellen Boardman

1



      

FY 19 ANNUAL REPORT 
 

Presented to the  

Governance Committee 
Ellen Boardman, Chairperson 

 

 March 11, 2020 

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager 

Governance Committee - 2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report -Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

2



2 

As part of the Board’s Strategic Initiative #2, the DC Water Works encourages and supports the development and employment  
of local residents as employees on DC Water construction and service projects.  

 
 
 
 

DC Water Works Program 

Program Goals   

 Fifty-One percent (51%) of the total contractor workforce will be local residents.    

 

 Sixty percent (60%) of new jobs created by contracts or procurements entered into by DC Water with contractors will be filled by 
local residents.   

o New Jobs mean both union and non-union job openings, including vacancies created as a result of internal promotions, 
terminations or other separations, and expansions of the contractor’s workforce.   

  

  

 

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager 

Governance Committee - 2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report -Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

3



Special Projects 
DC – 32 

PGC -1 

MC – 0 

FC -0 

OUJ - 0 

Laborer 
Positions 

DC - 13 

PGC - 8 

MC – 3 

FC -1 

OUJ - 4 
Technical 
Positions 

DC - 6 

PGC - 5 

MC – 1 

FC -1 

OUJ –6 

Service 
Positions 

DC - 13 

PGC - 8 

MC – 0 

FC -0 

OUJ - 1 

 Total Number of Positions Filled: 103 
 DC Water Works Hires: 42 

o Contractor Filled:  61 
 
 

 Total User Jurisdiction Residents Hired: 92  
o Total DC Residents Hired: 64 

 

 Total Outside User Jurisdiction: 11 

New Opportunities filled through Water Works (October 1, 2018 – September 30, 2019) 

DC Water Works New Hire Goal:  60% for User Jurisdiction 

29 

19 22 

33 

3 

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager 

Governance Committee - 2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report -Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

4



4 

DC Resident Hires by Ward 
 Total DC Resident Hires: 64 

New Opportunities filled through Water Works (October 1, 2018 – September 30, 2019) 

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager 

DC Resident Hires By Ward 

Governance Committee - 2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report -Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

5



5 

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager 

DC WaterWorks Program 

DC WaterWorks maintains a set of Strategic Partners consisting of: Government agencies, community-based organizations, 

private contractors and union-affiliated groups that act as referral partners for contractor employment and training 

opportunities.  

 

In FY 19 the Strategic Partners contributed to the placements of 39 individuals on DC Water projects or training programs. 

Strategic Partner Referrals 

Partner 
Number of 
Placements 

Placement Type(s) 

Clean and Sober 2 Driver – 1, Laborer – 1 

Constituent Services Worldwide 16 

District Department of Employment Services (DOES) 7 Technician – 1, Apprentices– 6 

District Department of Public Works (DPW) 1 Laborer -1 

University of the District of Columbia (UDC) 7 Technician – 3, Laborer - 4 

Governance Committee - 2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report -Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

6



District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager 

Commercial Driver’s License Training Program 

 DC Water, through the Department of Facilities, conducted a second CDL training cohort.  
 Participants earn $15.00 per hour as Temporary Employees with MB Staffing.  
 Training Goals: 

o 80% Graduation (10) 
o 50% Placement of the Graduates (5) 

Program Status: 
 9 Participants Enrolled 

o All 9 Enrolled Completed the Program (100%) 
 

Employment Status: 
 8 Participants Employed (including two DC Water apprentices) 

 
 

6 

Department of Facilities Training Program 

 DC Water’s Department of Facilities in partnership with the District Department of Employment 
Services (LEAP and Project Empowerment) selected nine District residents for a six month On the Job 
Training program.   

 

o Program Duration – September through February 
o Participants are fully subsidized by the District Department of Employment Services 
o Participants have a dedicated mentor from the District Department of Employment Services 
o In addition to the On-the-Job experience, individuals will also participate in classroom-style 

training inclusive of: 
• Conflict Resolution  
• Workplace Safety  
• Job Readiness  

 Status: 
o 3 Participants  
o All three employed at completion of program 

 (including two DC Water apprentices)  

Governance Committee - 2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report -Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

7



Green Infrastructure 

Pursuant to the MOU between DC Water and the District, there is a goal that 51% of new hires on GI projects in 
the Rock Creek and Potomac River sewersheds with Green Infrastructure (GI) should be District residents.  
 

DC Water partnered with the University of the District of Columbia and Washington Parks and People to train 
and prepare District residents to successfully complete the National Green Infrastructure Program (NGICP) 
exam.  
 

Curricula was developed in partnership with DC Water, the Water Environment  
Foundation, and other partners across the nation.  
 

In FY 2019, there were two cohorts. 
 

Results: 
FY 2019 33 enrolled 19 graduated (58%) 
 

 GI New Hire Goal: 51% District Resident 
o Achievement: 94.% of the graduates were employed. 
 

1 Graduate has been accepted into the DC Water Apprenticeship Program. 
 

7 

Cohort 

  

Enrolled 

  

Start Date Test Date Graduated Employed 

Employed with 

DC Water GI 

Contractors 

Employed with 

DC Water non-GI 

Contractors 

Employed with 

Non DC Water 

Contractors 

7 15 11/5/2018 12/13/2018 11 10 3 2 5 

8 18 7/8/2019 8/20/2019 8 8   6 1 1 

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager 

Governance Committee - 2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report -Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

8



8 

DC Water Apprenticeship Program 

 Implemented in October 2018. 
o Kickoff began September 16, 2019 
 

 

 2,000 of On-the-Job Learning per year  
 Minimum 144 hours of classroom training 

 
 

 In its first year, DC Water enrolled 14 apprentices: 
 

 
 

 
 

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
David L. Gadis, Chief Executive Officer 

Trade # of 
Apprentices 

Length of 
Apprenticeship 

Upon Completion 

HVAC 2 4 Years Journeymen AC Mechanics 

Plumbing 2 4 Years Journeymen Plumbers licensed in DC 

Quality Assurance (Fleet)  2 5 Years 
Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) 
Technicians 

Utility Services 2 2 Years Journeymen Utility Service Workers 

Waste Water 6 3 Years 
Licensed Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Operators 

Governance Committee - 2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report -Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

9



9 

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager 

Senior Community Service Employment Program 

 The Senior Community Service Employment Program is a federal program administered by DOES to help older Americans 
get back into/remain active in the workforce. It is a part-time work-based training program where participants gain career 
skills through an on the job training experience.  
 

 DC Water participated in this program for the first time this year and accepted one participant to support Materials 
Management with Maximo administration/support.  
 

o Program Duration – One Year 
o Work Hours –9:00 am to 12:00 pm (up to 20 hours per week) 
o Participants are fully subsidized by the District Department of Employment Services 

 
 

Program Status: 
 2 Participants Enrolled 

Governance Committee - 2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report -Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

10



10 

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager 

New Opportunities filled through Water Works – Three Year Review 

(89%) 

(92%) 

(89%) 

DC Water Works FY 21 Goals:  
 60% Local Workforce and  
 75% New Hire Goals 

Governance Committee - 2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report -Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

11



FY 2019 Outreach Activities 

 
 October 2018: Invitation only Targeted Employer Day and Interviews (2 hired). 

 November 2018: National Apprenticeship Week. Korey Gray served as a panelist on the Business Roundtable. 

 February 2019: Invitation only Targeted Employer Day and Interviews (2 hired). 

 May 2019: DC Infrastructure Academy Industry Appreciation Event.  

 August 2019: Water Environment Federation, Transformative Issues Symposium.  
Korey Gray facilitated a panel,  entitled, Bridging the Gap: Leveraging the Utilities’ Core Purpose to Create 
Pathways of Employment for the Youth and “Hard to Place” Adults”.   
o Panelists: Linda Fennell 
o Dr. Dwane Jones, Interim Dean, UDC/CAUSES  
o Lecester Johnson, Executive Director, Academy of Hope   

      

11 

DC WaterWorks Program 

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
David L. Gadis, Chief Executive Officer 

Governance Committee - 2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report -Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

12



Proposed Changes To The 
District Of Columbia Water And Sewer Authority 

Business Development Plan

Presented

Wednesday, January 8, 2020

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

1

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

13



2

I. Basis for Proposed Changes

II. Overview of DC Water’s current Business Development Program
 Goals and Objectives
 Discretionary Funded Projects
 Federally Funded Projects

III. Summary of the Review Process to Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan
 Internal Review Team
 Public Outreach

IV. Overview of the Proposed Changes  
 General Updates
 Update to the Local Small Business Enterprise Program
 Updates to the Fair Share Objectives Program
 Creation of a new Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program
 Updates to the Business Development/Capacity Building Elements

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan

Agenda

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

14



3

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Basis for Proposed Changes: 

 Board Requirement (See Attachments – “Basis for Changes”, Tab 3)

 In response to the 2017 Audit (RSM) Findings (See Attachments – “Basis for Changes”, Tab 3)

 To conform with existing (federal) guidance and practices (See Attachments – “Summary of EPA’s Rule Changes 
to the Fair share Program”, Tab 4)

 To (further) clarify contractor requirements and expectations

 In response to requests and suggestions made by DC Water staff and contractors

Rationale for Updating the Business Development Plan

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

15



4

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Rationale for Updating the Business Development Plan

Overview of DC Water’s current Business Development Program

DC Water’s Business Development Plan was adopted by the Board on June 3, 1999. 

GOALS

The District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority (DC Water) is committed to promoting economic and business 
development in the District of Columbia and the local region it serves. 

DC Water actively encourages and supports the participation of certified local businesses, local small business enterprises, 
and disadvantaged (minority and women-owned) business enterprises in its contracting and procurement activities, at all 
tier levels. 

OBJECTIVES

To foster the growth and competitiveness of the local, small, and minority/women-owned business community. 

To encourage participation on DC Water procurements.

To assist the development of firms that can compete on an equal footing in the market place and have a positive impact on 
the regional economy.

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

16



5

Board established Program 
o A geographic preference program

o Not Race Based

o Encourages participation by local and small firms in the User Jurisdiction

o To participate, firms must be certified by an authority recognized by DC Water.

• DC Water does not certify firms.

o Utilization of Preference Points 

Local = 5 points

Small = 5 points
 Firms  may be certified as local and receive 5 points OR
 Firms may be certified as small and receive 5 points  OR
 Firms may be certified as local and small and receive 10 points 

The maximum number of eligible preference points for a proposal is  ten (10) points. 
Under no circumstances will firms be allowed to receive more than a 10 point preference in the 
evaluation of proposals

Rationale for Updating the Business Development Plan

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Local and Local Small Business Enterprise Program for Discretionary Projects 

Overview of DC Water’s current Business Development Program

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

17



6

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Rationale for Updating the Business Development Plan

o 40 CFR Part 33

o DC Water’s policy is to meet or exceed EPA Objectives for DBE participation in prominent and leadership roles
 32% DBE and 6% WBE Participation on Construction Projects
 28% DBE and 4% WBE Participation on A/E Projects

o Institution of Six (6) Affirmative Steps to ensure DBEs have equitable access to the available procurements. 
 Exceed goals in dollars paid to certified firms as well as to the number of certified firms participating on DC 

Water Projects. 

o Monthly Reporting to DC Water

o Reporting to the Environmental Protection Agency

Fair Share Objectives for Projects Eligible for Federal Funding 

Overview of DC Water’s current Business Development Program

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

18



District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Compliance

EngineeringLegal Affairs

Procurement

Business Development Plan Review

Internal StaffGovernment
Business 

Organizations

Review Process

7

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

19



8

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Business Development Plan Review

Public Outreach (December 2018 – June 2019)

 Conducted 7 Information Sessions/Meetings with over 80 firms 
and organizations (Prime Contractors; Certified Subcontractors; 
Suppliers; Business Organizations; District and Federal Agencies)

Timeline of Outreach

oDecember 12, 2018 – 1st Lunch and Learn (27 Participants)

oJanuary 29, 2019 – 2nd Lunch and Learn (8 Participants)

oMarch 7, 2019 – 3rd Lunch and Learn (27 Participants)

oMarch 22, 2019 – Meeting with DSLBD

oMay 22, 2019 – 4th Lunch and Learn  (16 Participants)

oMay 29, 2019 – Fort Myer Round Table (14 Attendees)

oJune 20, 2019 – Meeting with Maryland Washington Minority Contractor’s Association

 Received over 40 Comments and Suggestions

Additional Meetings held with representatives from: 

oThe Environmental Protection Agency

oThe Small Business Administration 

oThe University of the District of Columbia 

oThe United States Department of Transportation, Office of Civil Rights

oThe Washington Area Small Business Development Center (at Howard University)

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

20



9

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Business Development Plan Review

Proposed 
Third 

Program

General
Updates

LSBE 
Program 
Updates

M/WBE 
Program 
Updates

Proposed Changes

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

21



10

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

 Updating Certifying Bodies
o For the LSBE Program - (Page 6, Section I. C., “Eligible Program Participants”)
o For the EPA Fair Share Program - (Page 14, Section III. B. , “MBE/WBE Certification”)

Business Development Plan Review

General Updates

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

22



11

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Local/Small Business Enterprise Program
for 

Small Purchases and Procurements

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

23



12

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Local Small Business Enterprise Program Updates

Program 
Component

Current Provisions Proposed Changes

Micro Purchases

 Micro Purchases are not included in the Business 
Development Plan

 LSBE Participation is not mentioned (but 
encouraged in practice)

 Incorporate Micro Purchases into the Business
Development Plan

 Preference given to LSBE Participation

(Page 6, Section I.B.3, “Micro Purchases”)

Simplified 
Acquisitions

 Simplified acquisitions may be limited to LSBE 
firms when there are at least two such firms 
capable of doing the work

 End User Departments are responsible for 
sourcing

 Simplified acquisitions may be limited to LSBE
firms when there are at least two such firms
capable of doing the work

 Preference Points will apply to Simplified
Acquisitions

 Procurement/ Compliance is responsible for 
identifying LSBE firms. 

(Page 6, Section I.B.2, “Simplified Acquisitions”)

Large
Procurements

 Preference applies to all non-federally assisted 
projects valued at $100k or greater

 Preference applies to all non-federally assisted
projects valued between $100k and $1M

(Page 4, Section I.A, “Overall Local and Small
Participation Goals”)

Business Development Plan Review

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

24



13

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Environmental Protection Agency 
Fair Share Objectives 

for 
Federally Assisted Projects

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

25



14

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Program 
Component

Current Provisions Proposed Changes

Applicability
 All projects not specified as Open with Preference (Projects

could be federally supported or not)
 All projects clearly identified as funded or submitted

to the EPA (DDOE) for funding

Good Faith Efforts  Summarized
 Detailed
(Page 13, Section III.A.2, “MBE/WBE Program Design”)

Reporting 
Requirements

 Quarterly  “As required by 40 CFR Part 33” (Annually)

MBE Definition

For the purpose of the federal mandated program and fair 
share objectives, at least one of the following: 

1. A business which is certified as socially and economically
disadvantaged by the Small Business Administration; or

2. A business which is certified as a minority business
enterprise by a state or federal agency; or

3. An independent business concern which is at least 51%
owned and controlled by minority group member(s).

For the Purposes of the Fair Share Program, the EPA 
defines an MBE as a DBE that is: 

 A firm owned by a socially and economically 
disadvantaged individual(s) or a Historically 
Underutilized Small Business

(Page 21, Section VIII, “Glossary”)

EPA Fair Share Objectives

Business Development Plan Review

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

26



15

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Program Component
New Provision

(40 CFR Part 33.302(a))

MBE and WBE Certification  Detailed (Page 14, Section III.B, “MBE/WBE Certification”)

Counting MBEs and WBEs  Detailed (Page 14, Section III.C, “Counting MBE/WBE Participation”)

Substitution of MBE or WBE Subcontractors  Detailed (Page 15, Section III.D, “Substitution”)

Payments to Subcontractors  Detailed (Page 15, Section III.E, “Payments to Subcontractors”)

EPA Fair Share Objectives

Business Development Plan Review

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

27



16

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise/
Women Business Enterprise Program

for 
Non–Federally Assisted Projects

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

28



17

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

DBE/WBE Program for Non-Federally Assisted Projects

Business Development Plan Review

Proposes the creation of a new program element for large non-federal projects over $1M

 Control and Flexibility given to DC Water  
New Proposed Program will impact the largest number (and dollar value) of projects
o 80 Construction and A/E projects are slated for FY 20 and FY 21 with EPA language

• 5 Projects are actually eligible for EPA funding

 Allows DC Water to count District Based “Certified Business Enterprise” (CBE) participation on construction projects

 Follows established protocols

 Contractor familiarity 

 Regulation structure is already in place (not reinventing the wheel)

(Page 7, Section II., “Disadvantaged/Women Business enterprise Program for Non-Federally assisted Projects”)

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

29



18

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

 New Program

o Applicable to all non-federally assisted goods and services, construction and 

Architectural/Engineering (A/E) contracts over $1 million. 

DBE/WBE Program for Non-Federally Assisted Projects

Business Development Plan Review

DBE/WBE 
Certifications

Tri-Annual (Overall) 
Goal Setting

Project Specific 
Goals Setting

Counting 
Certified Firms

Expanded
Good Faith 

Efforts

Monitoring 
and Reporting

Program Components:

(Page 7, Section II., “Disadvantaged/Women Business enterprise Program for Non-Federally Assisted Projects”)

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

30



District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

19

DBE/WBE Recognized Certifications (Page 7, Section II.C., “DBE/WBE Certification”) 

SBA DOT

WBE DSLBD

Any US Department of Transportation’s 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
Program

The District of Columbia Department 
of Small and Local Business 
Developments Local Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise Certification

Any  Government or independent 
organization that maintains a Women 

Business Enterprise Certification. 

WBE

DBE

Small Business Administration’s 
8(a) Program or the Small 

Disadvantaged Business Program

DBE/WBE Program for Non-Federally Assisted Projects

Business Development Plan Review

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

31



20

Tri-Annual Goal Setting Project Specific Goal Setting 

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Goal Setting Processes (Page 8, Sections II. D., “DBE/WBE Goals” and II. E., “Project Specific Goal Setting”) 

Overall DC Water Goals

Goals will be set by the Board of Directors in three 

year intervals by July 31st. Separate goals will be set 

for Construction, A/E, and Goods and Services

Project Specific Goals

Once set, the Project Specific Goals will be 

incorporated into the specific solicitation. 

Goal Achievement

DC Water will review its goal achievement annually 
and by project to determine if its overall goals are 
being achieved

Applicability

DC Water’s Overall Goals are taken into 
consideration when setting specific goals 

Factors

 Scope of the project 
 Location of the project 
 Duration of the Project
 Potential Primes
 Subcontracting 

opportunities
 Available DBE/WBEs
 Other factors 

External Support

DC Water will consult with 
relevant organizations, 

business groups, agencies, and 
associations in establishing the 

overall goals

DBE/WBE Program for Non-Federally Assisted Projects

Business Development Plan Review

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

32



21

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

DBE/WBE Program for Non-Federally Assisted Projects

Business Development Plan Review

Counting DBE and WBE Participation (Page 9, Section II. F., “Counting DBE/WBE Participation”) 

In order to be 

counted towards 

the DBE  or WBE 

goals, a firm must 

have a recognized 

certification. 

0
1

Participation will be 

counted for 

certified:

 Prime 

Contractors

 Subcontractors

 Joint Venture 

Partners

 Vendors

 Protégés (from a 

registered 

program)/0
2

Certified firms must 

perform a 

“Commercially 

Useful Function” in 

order to be 

counted.

Presumption is the 

certified firm will 

perform at least 

50% of the cost of 

its own contract. 
0
3

Goals are not 

quotas.  

Contractors cannot 

be penalized or 

treated as non-

compliant simply 

for failing to 

achieve the goals –

unless they did not 

act in good faith. 

0
4

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

33



District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

22

DBE/WBE Program for Non-Federally Assisted Projects

Business Development Plan Review

Good Faith Efforts (Page 9, Section II. H., “Good Faith Efforts”) 

1. The names and addresses of known DBEs/WBEs that will participate in the contract;

2. A description of the work that each DBE/WBE will perform;

3. The contract value of each DBE/WBE;

4. Signed documentation of the Prime’s intent to use the DBEs/WBEs identified to participate in the contract (with 

DBE/WBE confirmation);

5. Evidence of good faith efforts.

Bidders are to make good faith efforts to identify and subcontract portions of the non-federally assisted contract to

DBE/WBEs. DC Water treats bidders'/offerors’ compliance with good faith effort requirements as a matter of

responsiveness. A responsive bid/proposal is meeting all the requirements of the advertisement and solicitation.

Each solicitation for which a project specific goal has been established will require the bidders/offerors to submit the

following information:

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

34



DBE/WBE Program for Non-Federally Assisted Projects

Business Development Plan Review

4

Negotiating in good faith with the certified 
business community. Providing proof of the 
engagement with certified firms. 

Not rejecting a firm solely on the basis 
of standing or affiliations or price.

Supporting certified firms 
with bonding, or other issues. 

Assisting certified firm obtain 
equipment, supplies, materials, etc. 

Working with external agencies, 
associations, and organizations to 
identify potential subcontractors and 
resources. 

5

7

6

8

Negotiations

Support

1

3

2

10

9

Outreach

Other

Engaging the certified business 
community. 30 days notice

Identifying subcontracting 
opportunities. Dividing 
large pieces of work. Lower 
tier opportunities.  

Providing adequate information 
to the certified firms. 

Other examples from a 
bidding prime that 
demonstrates good faith 
efforts. (i.e. Mentor Protégé 
Program)

Reporting any issues with identifying certified firms 
to DC water’s Compliance Team before bids are 
submitted. 

Evidence of 
Good Faith 

Efforts

Evidence of Good Faith Efforts (Pages 10-12, Section II. I., “Evidence of Good Faith Efforts”) 

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

23

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

35



24

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

DBE/WBE Program for Non-Federally Assisted Projects

Business Development Plan Review

Substitution (Page 12, Section II. J., “Substitution”) 

Replacing a 
Certified Firm

On-Going 
GFE’s

Prime Contractors cannot 
terminate a DBE or WBE 
without good cause and the 
consent of DC Water
 Prior notice given to DC 

Water 10 days before 
termination. 

Contractors must make good 
faith efforts to replace a DBE 
or WBE that is no longer on 
the project. 

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

36



25

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

DBE/WBE Program for Non-Federally Assisted Projects

Business Development Plan Review

Monitoring and Reporting (Pages 12, Sections II. K., “Monitoring” and II. L., “Reporting”) 

Commitments 
by the Prime

Commitments 
vs. Actuals

Primes Ongoing 
Support of the 
Certified Subs

Updates on 
attainment/issues

Annual Reports 
to the Board 
(Governance 
Committee)

Outreach to the 
certified Business 

Community

Goals
Invoices 

and 
Payments

Ongoing 
GFE’s

Management 
Reporting

GFE’s Board 
Reporting

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

37



26

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Outreach

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

38



District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Program Component Proposed Changes

Outreach

Added new language:

5) Procurement forecast data will be shared.

d) External Conferences – DC Water may participate in procurement
conferences or other related events sponsored by external organizations
and agencies to describe DC Water’s Capital Improvement Program and
history of LBEs, LSBEs, MBEs &WBEs participation.

DC Water Outreach Efforts 

Business Development Plan Review

Outreach Efforts (Page 16, Section V., “DC Water Outreach Efforts”) 

27

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

39



28

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

CAPACITY BUILDING

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

40



29

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

DC Water’s proposed Mentor-Protégé guidelines are designed to enhance the engagement between primes and subs and 
create a new pathway for certified firms to participate and grow. 

 Voluntary program
 Participation will count towards GFE’s
 Certified firm participation will count towards goals. 

Goals of the Mentor-Protégé Program: 

 Enhance the business skills of certified firms; 
 Broaden the base of the certified firms’ design, engineering and construction activity;
 Build long-term stability of certified firms; and

 Assist in overcoming common barriers for certified firms, i.e., bonding.

Mentor Protégé Program

Business Development Plan Review

New Program Component

Mentor Protégé Program (Pages 17, Section VI. A., “Mentor-Protégé Program”) 

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

41



30

District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority
David L. Gadis, CEO and General Manager

Mentor Protégé Program

Business Development Plan Review

Roles
General 

Guidelines

Mentor-Protégé
Process

Measurement of 
Success

 Primes will develop specific 
programs for approval

 Mentors will find their 
Protégés

 Mentor Protégé programs 
are evidence of GFE’s

 Programs should be for 2 
years

 DC Water to monitor 
progress

Success of the Mentor –
Protégé Program is 
determined by the protégés:
 Capital Base
 Bonding Limits
 Value of current and future 

work
 Staff Retention

 DC Water
o Program 

Administration

 Mentors
o Prime Contractors

 Protégés
o Certified DBE/WBE ‘s

Submission of plan to DC 
Water. Plan should include:
 Identity of Protégé
 Description of 

developmental 
program

 Program Terms
 Procedures of voluntary 

withdrawal. 

Governance Committee - 3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer

42



Action Item #

1

BY-LAWS
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

Adopted – October 17, 1996; Resolution 96-11
Amended – February 4, 1999; Resolution 99-10
Amended – February 1, 2001; Resolution 01-16

Amended – September 12, 2002; Resolution 02-75
Amended – December 4, 2003; Resolution 03-86

Amended – July 5, 2007; Resolution 07-64
Amended – October 2, 2008: Resolution 08-87

Amended – April 1, 2010: Resolution 10-42
Amended – October 7, 2010; Resolution 10-100

Amended – December 2, 2010; Resolution 10-115
Amended – April 7, 2011; Resolution 11-49

Amended – December 5, 2013; Resolution 13-112
Amended – February 2, 2017; Resolution 17-11

Amended – September 5, 2019; Resolution 19-47
Proposed Amendment – April 2, 2020; Resolution 20-XX

ARTICLE I
General 

These By-Laws and the Water and Sewer Authority Establishment and 
Department of Public Works Reorganization Act of 1996 (the “Act”), as the Act shall be 
amended from time to time, govern the function and operation of the District of Columbia 
Water and Sewer Authority (the “Authority”) and in the event of any conflict between these 
By-Laws and the Act, the Act shall control to the extent of the conflict.  Terms defined in 
the Act shall have the same meaning when used in these By-Laws.  References in these 
By-Laws to the Act, or any provision thereof, shall include a reference to any amendment 
to the Act which takes effect after the adoption of these By-Laws.

ARTICLE II
Board of Directors

§ 2.01 Composition

(a)  The Board of Directors of the Authority (the “Board”) shall consist of eleven
(11) principal Board members (“principal members”) and eleven (11) alternate Board 
members (“alternate members”).

(b)  Alternate members may participate in discussion at Board meetings, at the 
Chairperson’s discretion, but may vote at Board meetings only when their corresponding 
principal Board member is absent.  An alternate member permitted by this subsection to 
vote at a meeting shall do so as a representative of their corresponding principal member 
except that if the principal’s position is vacant the alternate shall vote in her or his own 
right.

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

43



2

(c)  Principal members shall endeavor to attend all Board meetings and 
meetings of those Committees upon which they serve.

(d) Alternate members shall attend any meeting which their corresponding 
principal is required to, but cannot attend.  Alternates shall either attend all other meetings 
or familiarize themselves with the discussions and determination made at such meetings.

(e) Alternate members may be appointed by the Chairperson to the
Committees established by the Board and may fully participate in Committee functions.  

§ 2.02 Duties

The Board shall develop policies for the management, maintenance, and operation 
of water distribution and sewage collection and treatment, disposal systems and other 
devices and facilities under the control of the Authority, and shall perform such other 
duties as are specified in or otherwise required by the Act and these By-Laws.

§ 2.03 Removal, Suspension, and Termination

(a)  The Board may recommend that the Mayor remove, suspend, or terminate 
a principal or alternate member for misconduct or neglect of duty.  The Mayor may remove 
a principal or alternate pursuant to section 204(g) of the Act (D.C. Official Code § 34-
2202.04(a)(4)(g)).

(b)  The Board may recommend that the Mayor remove, suspend, or terminate 
a principal or alternate member for misconduct if the Board finds that the member or 
alternate committed any act involving moral turpitude.  The Mayor may remove a principal 
or alternate pursuant to section 204(g) of the Act (D.C. Official Code § 34-
2202.04(a)(4)(g)).

(c)  The Board may recommend that the Mayor remove, suspend, or terminate 
a principal or alternate member for neglect of duty if the Board finds that:

(i) The principal or alternate member committed any act or omission 
which constitutes a breach of the Board member’s or alternate’s 
fiduciary duty to the Board or the Authority;

(ii) A principal member failed to attend two or more Board meetings, or 
three or more meetings of a Committee to which such member is 
appointed, within a twelve-month period, without providing a 
business or personal reason which the Board determines is 
legitimate; or

(iii) An alternate member, having received notice from his or her 
corresponding principal member of that member’s inability to attend 
a meeting (as required by § 3.05 (c)), failed to attend two or more 

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

44



3

such Board meetings, or three or more Committee meetings, within 
a twelve-month period, without providing a business or personal 
reason which the Board determines is legitimate.

(d)  A principal or alternate member who is indicted for the commission of a
felony shall be automatically suspended from serving on the Board.  Upon a final 
determination of guilt, the term of the principal of alternate member shall be automatically 
terminated.  Upon a final determination of innocence, the Mayor may reinstate the Board 
member.

§ 2.04 Resignation

Any principal or alternate member may resign by giving notice of resignation to the 
Mayor and a copy of the notice to the Secretary to the Board.  A non-District member 
shall also notify the official authorized to recommend a successor.  The member’s 
resignation shall take effect on the date specified in the notice.

§ 2.05 Compensation

Principal and alternate members of the Board of Directors shall be compensated 
and reimbursed for expenses as provided in the Act and in accordance with the Authority’s 
reimbursement procedures for executive officers.

ARTICLE III
Meetings

§ 3.01 Meetings to be Open to Public; Availability of Records

(a) For purposes of these By-Laws, except as provided in subsection (g), the 
term “meeting” shall be defined as a gathering of a quorum of the members of the Board, 
including hearings and roundtables, whether formal or informal, regular, closed executive
session, or emergency, at which the members of the Board during such gathering
consider, conduct, or advise on Authority business, including gathering of information, 
taking testimony, discussing, deliberating, recommending, and voting, regardless 
whether the meeting is held in person, by telephone, electronically, or by other means of 
communication.  The term “meeting” may also include part or all of a retreat. The term 
“meeting” shall not include a chance or social gathering, press conference, or training 
session.

(b)  Except as provided in § 3.04, all meetings shall be open to the public. A 
meeting shall be deemed open to the public if:

(i) The public is permitted to be physically present;
(ii) The news media, as defined by D.C. Official Code § 16-4701, is 

permitted to be present; or
(iii) The meeting is televised.

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

45



4

(c) All meeting, whether open or closed, shall be recorded by electronic means; 
provided, that if a recording is not feasible, detailed minutes of the meeting shall be kept.

(d) Copies of records, including a written transcript or transcription shall be 
made available to the public, at a reasonable cost, upon request in accordance with the 
following schedule, provided that a record, or a portion of a record, may be withheld under 
the standards established for closed executive session meetings as provided in § 3.04:

(i) A copy of the approved minutes of a meeting shall be made available 
for public inspection as soon as practicable, but no later than three 
(3) business days after the meeting at which the minutes were 
approved.

(ii) A copy of the full record, including any recording or transcript, shall 
be made available for public inspection as soon as practicable, but 
not later than seven (7) business days after the meeting.

(e) A meeting may be held by video conference, telephone conference, or other 
electronic means, provided that:

(i) Reasonable arrangements are made to accommodate the public’s 
right to attend the meeting;

(ii) The meeting is recorded; and

(iii) All votes are taken by roll call.

(f) A meeting held by electronic means shall comply with all of the 
requirements of these By-Laws.  

(g) E-mail exchanges among principal or alternate members and staff shall not 
constitute an electronic meeting.

§ 3.02 Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on the first Thursday of each month, 
or if such day is a legal holiday in the District of Columbia, then on the next weekday 
following such day unless an alternate date is determined to be appropriate by the 
Chairperson.  All meetings shall be held at the District of Columbia Water and Sewer 
Authority Headquarters Building, 1385 Canal Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003, or as 
otherwise specified in the notice of such meeting.

§ 3.03 Emergency Meetings

(a) Emergency meetings of the Board to address an urgent matter may be 
called by the Chairperson on his or her own initiative, or upon the written request of not 

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

46



5

less than three members of the Board entitled to vote on the matter or matters to be 
considered at the emergency meeting (which request shall specify such proposed matter 
or matters and shall be delivered to the Chairperson and the Secretary to the Board).

(b)  When an emergency meeting is convened, the Chairperson shall open the 
meeting with a statement explaining the subject of the meeting, the nature of the 
emergency and how public notice was provided.

§ 3.04 Closed (Executive Session) Meetings

(a) The Board or Committee may only close a meeting or portion of a meeting 
for an executive session for the following reasons:

(i) A law or court order requires that a particular matter or proceeding 
not be public;

(ii) To discuss, establish, or instruct the Authority’s staff or negotiating 
agents concerning the position to be taken in negotiating the price 
and other material terms of a contract, including an employment 
contract, if an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining 
position or negotiating strategy of the Authority;

(iii) To discuss, establish, or instruct the Authority’s staff or negotiating 
agents concerning the position to be taken in negotiating incentives 
relating to the location or expansion of industries or other businesses 
or business activities in the District;

(iv) To consult with the Executive Vice-President, Legal Affairs or other
attorney to obtain legal advice and to preserve the attorney-client 
privilege between an attorney and the Authority, or to approve 
settlement agreements; provided, that, upon request, the Authority
may decide to waive the privilege. A meeting shall not be closed that 
would otherwise be open merely because an attorney for the 
Authority is a participant;

(v) Planning, discussing, or conducting specific collective bargaining 
negotiations;

(vi) Preparation, administration, or grading of scholastic, licensing, or 
qualifying examinations;

(vii) To prevent premature disclosure of an honorary degree, 
scholarship, prize, or similar award;

(viii) To discuss and take action regarding specific methods and 
procedures to protect the public from existing or potential terrorist 

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

47



6

activity or substantial dangers to public health and safety, and to 
receive briefings by staff members, legal counsel, law enforcement 
officials, or emergency service officials concerning these methods 
and procedures; provided, that disclosure would endanger the 
public and a record of the closed session is made public if and 
when the public would not be endangered by that disclosure;

(ix) To discuss disciplinary matters;

(x) To discuss the appointment, employment, assignment, promotion, 
performance evaluation, compensation, discipline, demotion, 
removal, or resignation of government appointees, employees, or 
officials;

(xi) To discuss trade secrets and commercial or financial information 
obtained from outside the Authority, to the extent that disclosure 
would result in substantial harm to the competitive position of the 
person from whom the information was obtained;

(xii) To train and develop members of the Board and staff, including off-
site retreats of members for such purposes;

(xiii) To deliberate upon a decision in an adjudication action or 
proceeding by the Authority exercising quasi-judicial functions; and

(xiv) To plan, discuss, or hear reports concerning ongoing or planned 
investigations of alleged criminal or civil misconduct or violations of 
law or regulations, if disclosure to the public would harm the 
investigation.

(b)  Before a Board or Committee meeting or portion of a meeting is closed for 
an executive session, the Board or Committee shall:

(i) Meet in an open session at which a majority of the members 
present shall vote in favor of closure; 

(ii) The Chairperson or acting Chairperson of the Board or Committee 
shall make a statement providing the reason for closure, including a
citation from § 3.04(a) and the subjects to be discussed; and

(iii) The Secretary to the Board shall make available to the public a
copy of the written roll call vote and the statement.

(c)  A Board or Committee meeting in a closed executive session shall not 
discuss or consider matters other than those matters listed under § 3.04(a).

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

48



7

§ 3.05 Notice to the Board of Meetings

(a)  Before any meeting of the Board, the Secretary to the Board shall notify 
principal and alternate members of the meeting by:

(i) Mailing a notice by first class mail, postage prepaid at least five (5)
days (Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays excluded) before the 
date of such meeting to the principal and alternate members’ 
addresses appearing on the Authority’s records; or

(ii) Delivering a notice by hand, facsimile or e-mail transmission at least 
one (1) day (Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays excluded) 
before the date of such meeting to the principal and alternate 
members’ respective addresses, facsimile numbers or e-mail 
addresses appearing on the record.

(b)  The notice shall state the date, time, and place of the meeting and shall be 
accompanied by a proposed agenda, prepared in accordance with § 3.07(a), except that 
where an emergency meeting is called, and time does not allow for the preparation of an 
agenda prior to the issuance of notice, the notice shall include a brief description of the 
matters to be considered.

(c)  A member who is unable to attend a meeting due to legitimate personal or 
business reasons shall notify the designated alternate and the Secretary to the Board. If 
the member’s corresponding alternate is also unable to attend, the alternate shall notify 
the Secretary to the Board of these circumstances and the reason for his or her absence.

(d) Satisfaction of the notice requirements of this Section may be waived by a 
majority of the members of the Board at a meeting at which a quorum is present, provided 
that the Secretary to the Board shall have made reasonable efforts to comply with such 
requirements.  The attendance of a principal or alternate member at a Board meeting 
shall constitute such a waiver unless specific objection is made before the presence of a 
quorum is determined.

§ 3.06 Notice of Meetings to the Public

(a) The Secretary to the Board shall inform the public of any Board or 
Committee meeting, including regular, emergency, or closed executive session meeting, 
when they are scheduled and when the schedule is changed;

(b) Notices to the public shall be posted on the Authority’s website and in a 
public area at the District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority Headquarters Building, 
or the location of the Board or Committee meeting not less than forty-eight (48) hours or 
two (2) business days before a meeting.  Notice of meetings shall also be published in 
the D.C. Register as timely as practicable.

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

49



8

(c)  The Secretary to the Board shall inform the public of a hearing to consider 
the establishment or adjustment of retail water and sewer rates by publishing a notice in 
the D.C. Register and a newspaper of general circulation at least ten (10) days prior to 
the date of the hearing.

(d)  The Secretary to the Board shall inform the public of any emergency 
meeting by posting the notice of the meeting on the Authority’s website and in a public 
area at the District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority Headquarters Building, or the 
location of the Board or Committee meeting at the same time as notice of the meeting is 
issued to Board members.

(e)  Each notice to the public for a Board or Committee meeting shall include 
the date, time, location, and planned agenda to be covered at the meeting. If the meeting 
or any portion of the meeting is to be closed, the notice shall include, if feasible, a 
statement of intent to close the meeting or any portion of the meeting, including citations 
to the reason for closure under § 3.04(a), and a description of the matters to be discussed.

§ 3.07 Agenda

(a) The Secretary to the Board shall prepare a proposed agenda under the 
Chairperson’s direction, including a consent agenda, for each meeting of the Board and
Committee.  The agenda shall be attached to the notices provided for in §§ 3.05 and 3.06, 
and shall designate, by an asterisk or other mark, those items which do not involve “joint-
use sewerage facilities” within the meaning of Section 201(4) of the Act (a “non joint-use” 
matter).  

(b)  A motion to change the designation or non-designation of an agenda item 
as non joint-use must be made and acted on prior to discussion of the item.  In the event 
that the Board is to consider a matter not listed on the proposed agenda or matters at an
emergency meeting for which no agenda was prepared, such matters are presumed to 
be joint-use items unless a motion to redesignate the item is made and acted on prior to 
discussion of the item.

§ 3.08 Quorum

(a) Six (6) principal members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 
Board business, except that an alternate member may be counted towards a quorum in 
the absence of their corresponding principal member.

(b) Four (4) District members shall constitute a quorum for conducting a public 
hearing to establish or adjust retail water and sewer rates, pursuant to 21 DCMR § 4001.3.

(c) Committees shall not be required to meet a quorum requirement to hold a 
meeting.

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

50



9

(d)  The number of attendees at a Board or Committee meeting shall not be kept 
below the number required to establish a quorum to avoid these requirements.

§ 3.09 Conduct of Business

(a) The Chairperson shall preside over Board meetings.

(b) Board actions shall be presented for a vote in the form of a resolution.

(c)  The Board may postpone consideration of an agenda item by a majority 
vote of those members authorized to participate in the decision.

(d)  All votes of the Board or Committee to hold a closed executive session or 
during a meeting conducted by electronic means shall be taken by roll call and recorded 
by the Secretary to the Board.

(e) Physical attendance at Board meetings is the preferred method of 
participation. However, Board members may participate telephonically and via 
videoconferencing in both Board and Committee meetings. Members participating in 
Board meetings telephonically or via videoconferencing may both be considered for 
purposes of determination of a quorum and vote. Members participating in Committee 
meetings telephonically or via videoconferencing may voice their recommendations to the 
Board. However, such telephonic and videoconferencing participation is to occur only 
when the following conditions are met: (i) neither the principal nor the principal’s alternate 
can attend the meeting in person; and (ii) the Chairperson determines that the telephonic
and/or videoconferencing communication is in the best interest of the Authority. In order 
for the Chairperson to make this determination, the Board member wishing to participate 
telephonically or via videoconferencing must notify the Chairperson as soon as he/she is 
aware of the need to participate in this manner or the day before the meeting, whichever
occurrence is earlier in time.

(f) The Board may establish rules governing the conduct and procedure of 
Board and Committee meetings.  Questions of procedure for meetings of the Board or 
Committee meetings that are not determined by these By-Laws or any rules adopted by 
the Board shall be governed by Robert’s Rules of Order as interpreted by the 
Chairperson.

ARTICLE IV
Officers of the Board

§ 4.01 Appointment

(a) The Officers of the Board shall consist of the Chairperson, who shall be 
selected as provided for in the Act; a First Vice-Chairperson, Second Vice-Chairperson; 
and Vice-Chairperson and Alternate Vice-Chairperson for each participating jurisdiction.

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

51



10

(b) Effective September 5, 2019, the initial appointment of the First Vice-
Chairperson and Second Vice-Chairperson shall be nominated by the Chairperson and, 
by resolution, approved by the Board; thereafter, these Officers shall be nominated by the 
Executive Committee and, by resolution, approved by the Board.

(c) Vice-Chairperson and Alternate Vice-Chairperson for each participating 
jurisdiction shall be nominated by the members from their respective jurisdiction and, by 
resolution, approved by the Board. In the event a jurisdiction has a Board member who 
holds an executive position in their jurisdiction (i.e. the City Administrator for the District 
of Columbia, the County Executive for Fairfax County, the Chief Administrative Officer for 
Prince George’s County and the Chief Administrative Officer for Montgomery County) that 
person shall automatically be appointed the Vice-Chairperson for that jurisdiction, unless 
such person also serves as the Chairperson in which case a non-executive shall be 
appointed to fill the position of Vice-Chairperson for that jurisdiction.

(d) Except for the Chairperson, all other Board Officers established by these 
By-Laws shall, by resolution, be approved by the Board at the first regular Board meeting 
of the calendar year, or as necessary.

(e) The Board may, by resolution, create or abolish any officer position (other 
than the Chairperson).

(f) The Board may, by resolution, delegate the duties of the officer position 
(other than the Chairperson) to any alternate member.

(g) Except for the Executive Committee, the Chairperson shall appoint the 
chairperson and members of standing and ad-hoc Committees of the Board, as 
recommended by the Executive Committee.

§ 4.02 Duties

(a)  The Chairperson’s duties shall include but are not limited to calling 
emergency meetings of the Board in accordance with § 3.03, determining the agenda of 
a meeting for purposes of § 3.07, presiding over Board meetings in accordance with § 
3.09, establishing ad-hoc Committees of the Board, appointing members and 
chairpersons of the standing and ad-hoc Committees of the Board in accordance with §§ 
4.01(g) and 5.02, and carrying out such other duties as are specified in these By-Laws or 
delegated to the Chairperson by resolutions of the Board that are in accordance with the 
Act and these By-Laws.

(b) The First Vice-Chairperson shall fulfill the duties of the Chairperson if the 
Chairperson is absent or otherwise unavailable to do so. The Second Vice-Chairperson 
shall fulfill the duties of the First Vice-Chairperson if the First Vice-Chairperson is absent 
or otherwise unavailable.

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

52



11

(c) The Alternate Vice-Chairperson for each jurisdiction shall fulfill the duties of 
the Vice-Chairperson for their respective jurisdiction if the Vice-Chairperson is absent or 
otherwise unavailable to do so.

§ 4.03 Term of Office

Except for the Chairperson, an Officer of the Board shall serve a one (1) year term 
commencing upon approval of the Board and terminating on December 31st of each 
calendar year or until a successor assumes office, unless the Officer resigns or is 
removed.

§ 4.04 Resignation and Removal of Officers

(a) Officers of the Board shall serve the full term provided in these By-Laws 
unless such term is terminated earlier by resolution of the Board for cause.

(b) An Officer may resign by written notice to the Chairperson and the Secretary 
to the Board.  The resignation shall take effect on the date the notice is received, unless 
the notice specifies a later effective date, which is acceptable to the Chairperson.

(c) The Board may appoint a successor to fill the unexpired term of a resigned 
or removed Officer (other than the Chairperson), or for a new term, as the Board considers 
appropriate.

ARTICLE V
Committees

§ 5.01 Establishment

(a) The following shall be standing Committees of the Board, with such other 
responsibilities as are specified by the Chairperson or appropriate resolution of the Board, 
including but not limited to the review of contracts that are material to the Committee’s 
assigned duties.  The Board may create additional standing Committees as it deems 
necessary. The Committees shall receive detailed information in their areas of 
responsibility and make recommendations to the Board. Only formal actions of the Board 
through resolution can bind the Authority. The chairperson of a standing or ad-hoc
Committee, with the concurrence of the Chairperson of the Board, may designate an 
acting chairperson for the purposes of chairing a particular standing or ad-hoc Committee
meeting.

(i) Executive Committee: Shall be composed of the Officers of the 
Board and shall meet at the direction of the Chairperson to: provide
recommendations to the Board regarding Board organizational 
direction, strategic planning, and general affairs; nominate the First 
Vice-Chairperson and Second Vice-Chairperson as provided in § 
4.01(b); and provide recommendations to the Chairperson for 
Committee chairmanship and membership.

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

53



12

(ii) Finance and Budget Committee: Shall make recommendations to 
the Board regarding actions required of or desired by the Board of 
Directors which have a significant and material fiscal effect as a 
result of operations, including by way of example and not limitation, 
adoption of the budget, borrowings, investments, grants, 
acquisitions, accounting, sales, insurance, adjustments to charges 
due for services or commodities furnished by the Authority, 
appropriations and the settlement of claims. 

(iii) District of Columbia Retail Water and Sewer Rates Committee: Shall 
be composed of the six (6) members of the Board representing the 
District and shall make recommendations to the Board regarding 
actions required of or desired by the Board of Directors with respect 
to the establishment of rates and fees for services or commodities 
furnished by the Authority; and customer services issues, including 
but not limited to customer education initiatives and customer 
assistance programs.

(iv) Environmental Quality and Operations Committee: Shall make 
recommendations to the Board regarding actions required of or 
desired by the Board of Directors with respect to: the assets, facilities 
and infrastructure owned, operated, or managed by the Authority, 
including but not limited to emergency planning and safety of 
operations; matters related to environmental and water quality; the 
operation, repair and replacement of  water distribution, and sewage 
and stormwater collection, treatment, and disposal systems; and 
groundwater flow management; and customer services issues, 
including but not limited to customer education initiatives and 
customer assistance programs.  

(v) Human Resources and Labor Relations Committee: Shall make 
recommendations to the Board regarding actions required of or 
desired by the Board of Directors with respect to the terms, 
requirements and conditions of employment for all employees 
including the General Manager, to include, by way of example and 
not limitation, matters involving compensation, pension and other 
benefits, awards and collective bargaining agreements.

(vi) Audit Committee: Shall make recommendations to the Board 
regarding actions required of or desired by the Board of Directors 
with respect to the independent appraisal of internal controls, 
operations and procedures utilized by the Authority in its financial 
and other operations, shall make recommendations to the Board 
regarding the selection of the Authority’s independent outside 
auditors, and shall meet as appropriate with such auditors with or 
without the presence of the Authority’s management.

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

54



13

(vii) Governance Committee: Shall make recommendations to the Board 
regarding the policies and procedures to be followed by the Board, 
matters of internal governance of the Board, resolution of ethical 
questions, the discharge of the Board’s duties, including any 
modifications of these By-Laws, and policy level oversight of the 
Authority’s legislative and governmental relations activities.  The 
Committee may also consider other matters involving the conduct of 
members, which may be referred by the Chairperson.

(viii) Strategic Planning Committee: Shall be composed of all Board 
members and shall make recommendations to the Board regarding 
both long and short term strategic planning.

§ 5.02 Appointment

Except for the Executive Committee, members of the Board’s standing 
Committees and ad-hoc Committees, and the chairpersons of these Committees, shall 
be appointed by the Chairperson of the Board as recommended by the Executive 
Committee.  Only District Board members may serve on Committees or Subcommittees 
with jurisdiction over the rates charged to District retail water and sewer customers.

§ 5.03 Duties

The principal duty of any Committee shall be to recommend proposed action to the 
Board of Directors. No Committee or individual member shall have the power to bind the 
Board or the Authority to any matter or obligation or to authorize any act by the Authority.

§ 5.04 Standing Committee Meetings

(a) At the first meeting each year of a standing Committee, the chairperson of 
such Committee (or the acting chairperson designated pursuant to § 5.01(a)), in 
consultation with the other members of the Committee, the Chairperson of the Board, and 
the General Manager, shall establish a meeting schedule for the remainder of the year 
and for the first meeting in the ensuing year.  Such schedule shall specify the date, time, 
and location at which each Committee meeting shall be held.  In consulting with the other 
members of the Committee, the Chairperson of the Board, and the General Manager, the 
chairperson of the Committee shall endeavor to the greatest possible extent to avoid 
conflicts with the meeting schedules of other Committees and to minimize inconvenience 
to Board Members and Alternates serving on multiple Committees, and to the General 
Manager and relevant staff, so as to facilitate Committee meeting attendance by all 
appropriate participants.

(b) Following the establishment of a Committee meeting schedule as provided 
in subsection (a), should the Chairperson of a Committee be unable to attend a scheduled 

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

55



14

meeting, such Committee chairperson shall request the Vice-Chairperson of the 
Committee (if a Vice-Chairperson has been designated) to serve as acting Chairperson 
for the purpose of conducting the meeting at the previously scheduled date, time, and 
location.  If the Vice-Chairperson is unable to attend, the Committee Chairperson shall 
request another member of the Committee to serve as acting Chairperson for such 
meeting.  In the event that neither the Vice-Chairperson nor another Committee member 
is available to serve as acting Chairperson for a previously scheduled meeting, or if it 
appears that a significant number of Committee members will be unable to attend at the 
scheduled date, time, or location, or at the request of the General Manager, the 
Committee Chairperson may request that the Chairperson of the Board waive the 
requirements of this subsection for good cause shown and permit such meeting to be 
held on a different date, or at a different time or location.  Should the Chairperson not 
grant such a waiver, the meeting shall be cancelled.

ARTICLE VI
Administration

§ 6.01 General Manager

The Board shall hire a General Manager upon the affirmative vote of eight (8)
voting members.  The General Manager shall be the chief administrative officer of the 
Authority and, subject to the direction and supervision of the Board, shall have such 
supervisory and management responsibilities concerning the Authority’s business, 
affairs, property, agents, and employees as the Board expressly determines by resolution.  
The General Manager may only be terminated upon an affirmative vote of eight (8) voting 
members.

§ 6.02 Delegation

The Board may by resolution delegate to the General Manager any of its authority 
to the extent permitted by the Act, including, but not limited to procurement authority in 
such amounts as are specified by the Board.

§ 6.03 Secretary to the Board

(a)  There is hereby established the Office of Secretary to the Board.  The 
Secretary to the Board shall not be an Officer of the Board and may not vote, but may be 
an employee of the Authority.

(b) The Secretary shall: 

(i) In addition to the responsibility established in section 3.07,
coordinate under the direction of the General Manager, all Board 
meetings and other business activities of the Board;.

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

56



15

(ii) Prepare meeting minutes from Board meetings and other business 
activities when appropriate and prepare agendas in accordance with 
§ 3.07;

(iii) Keep a written transcript or transcription of the proceedings of the 
Board and any hearings in one or more books kept for that purpose.  
The Secretary shall have custody of all books, records and papers 
of the Board;

(iv) Make available to the public any recordings, transcripts or 
transcription prepared pursuant to § 3.01 of these By-Laws and 
furnish copies to the public in accordance with that section;

(v) Maintain the annual reports required by law and approved by the 
Board.  The Secretary shall transmit copies of the approved report to 
the Mayor and the Council, and shall make the report available to the 
public;

(vi) Have custody of the seal of the Authority and shall have authority to 
affix, impress or reproduce such seal on copies of resolutions and 
other official actions of the Authority and on all documents, the 
execution and delivery of which has been duly authorized by the 
Board; and

(vii) Perform all duties and have all powers incident to the Office of the 
Secretary and shall perform such other duties and have such other 
powers as may be assigned by these By-Laws, the Board, its 
Chairperson, or the General Manager.

ARTICLE VII
Amendment

These By-Laws may be amended by a majority vote of the Board at a meeting 
which is open to the public in accordance with the Open Meetings Amendment Act of 
2010 (D.C. Official Code § 2-501 et seq.).

ARTICLE VIII
Miscellany

§ 8.01 Offices

(a) The principal office of the Authority and of the Board shall be located at the 
District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority Headquarters Building, 1385 Canal 
Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003.

(b) The Board may maintain other offices at such other places in the District as 
the Board may establish from time to time.

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

57



16

§ 8.02 Seal

The seal of the Authority shall be in the form of a circle and shall bear the name of 
the Authority and its year of establishment.

§ 8.03 Fiscal Year

The Fiscal Year of the Authority shall end on the last day of September of each 
year.

§ 8.04 Sureties and Bonds

The Board may require any officer, employee, or agent of the Authority to execute, 
as a condition of employment or continued employment, a bond in such sum, with such 
surety or sureties as the Board may direct, conditioned upon the faithful performance of 
such person’s duties to the Authority, including responsibility for negligence and of the 
accounting of all property, funds, or securities of the Authority as may come into such 
person’s control.

§ 8.05 Joint-Use Sewerage Facilities

Section 34-2202.01(4) of the D.C. Official Code, designates the following facilities 
as joint-use:

Little Falls Trunk Sewer; Upper Potomac Interceptor Sewer; Upper Potomac Interceptor 
Relief Sewer; Rock Creek Main Interceptor Sewer; Rock Creek Main Interceptor Relief 
Sewer; (duplicate deleted); Potomac River Sewage Pumping Station; Potomac River 
Force Mains; Watts Branch Trunk Sewer; Anacostia Force Main (Project 89 Sewer); 
Anacostia Force Main & Gravity Sewer; Outfall Sewers (Renamed Potomac River Trunk 
Sewers); Outfall Relief Sewers (Renamed Potomac River Trunk Relief Sewers); Upper 
Oxon Run Trunk Sewer; Upper Oxon Run Trunk Relief Sewer; Lower Oxon Run Trunk 
Sewer; Lower Oxon Run Trunk Relief Sewer; Blue Plains Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(Blue Plains); and Potomac Interceptor Sewer.

§ 8.06 Captions

The captions of the articles and sections of these By-Laws are provided solely for 
convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning thereof.

_______________________________
Secretary, Board of Directors

Governance Committee - 4. Amendment to the By-laws

58


	Call to Order - Ellen Boardman
	2. Compliance and DC Water Works! Annual Report -Korey Gray, Compliance Officer
	3. Proposed Changes to the Business Development Plan - Korey Gray, Compliance Officer
	4. Amendment to the By-laws

